MINUTES

OF THE
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
OF THE
STATE TRANSPORTATION BOARD
9:30 a.m., Thursday, October 3, 2002
Arizona Department of Transportation
State Transportation Board Reom, Room #147
206 South 17" Avenue
Phoenix, Arizona 85007

The State Transportation Board met in official session for a special meeting at 9:30 am,
Thursday, October 3, 2002, with Chairperson Dusenberry presiding. Other Board members
present included: Vice Chairperson Ingo Radicke, Dick Hileman, Bill Jeffers, Joe Lane and Jim
Martin. Also present were Director Victor Mendez, Debra Brisk, Deputy Director; John McGee,
Chief Financial Officer, Administrative Services Division; Gary Adams, Assistant Director,
Aeronautics Division; and Dale Buskirk, Acting Director, Planning Division. There were
approximately 20 people in the audience.

OPENING REMARKS AND PLEDGE

Chairperson Dusenberry led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Non-Interstate Federal-Aid (“A” “B” projects do not need FHWA concurrence,
but must comply with DBE regulations; other projects are subject to FHWA
and/or local government concurrence and compliance with DBE regulations)

BIDS OPENED: September 19
HIGHWAY: PHOENIX-GLOBE HIGHWAY (US 60)
SECTION: US 60/ SR 79 Traffic Interchange
COUNTY: Pinal
ROUTE NO: US 60, SR 79
PROJECT: STP-HES-TEA-060-D{006)B 060 PN 21 1 H564201C
FUNDING: 94% Federal 6% State
LOW BIDDER: Ames Construction, Inc.
AMOUNT: $8,331,522.10
STATE ESTIMATE: 10,013,547.00
$ UNDER: 1,682,024.90
%UNDER.: 16.8%
NO. BIDDERS: 12

RECOMMENDATION: AWARD



Board Action: A motion to approve the above recommendation was made by Mr.
Radicke, seconded by Mr. Jeffers and passed unanimously.

ADJOURN

Board Action: A motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Radicke, seconded by Mr. Hileman
and passed unanimously.

The meeting adjourned at 9:40 a.m.

%{:.c /ngmé;w

Katié Dusenberry, Chairperson /
State Transportation Board

Victor Mendez, Director,
Arizona Department of Transportation




MINUTES
OF THE
STATE TRANSPORTATION BOARD
STUDY SESSION
9:40 A.M., Thursday, October 3, 2002
Arizona Department of Transportation
Board Room
206 South 17" Avenue
Phoenix, Arizona 85007

The State Transportation Board met in official session for a study session at 9:40 am.,, Thursday,
October 3, 2002, with Chairman Dusenberry presiding. Other Board members present included:
Vice Chairperson Ingo Radicke, Dick Hileman, Bill Jeffers, Joe Lane and Jim Martin. Also
present were Director Victor Mendez, Debra Brisk, Deputy Director; John McGee, Chief
Financial Officer, Administrative Services Division; Gary Adams, Assistant  Director,
Aeronautics Division; and Dale Buskirk, Acting Director, Planning Division. There were
approximately 20 people in the audience.

FY 04 — 08 Program Study

Dale Buskirk presented an overview of the schedule for completing the F'Y 04 to FY 08 Five
Year Program. He explained that between August 1 and October 15, 2002 the Priority
Programming Team identified statewide projects available for programming.

A member asked if the Priority Programming Team is preparing a list of potential projects for
scoping. Mr. Buskirk responded yes, noting they submitted a request to all District Engineers
asking them to identify such projects. He stated, however, first consideration is being given to
projects that were initially in the program, but were deferred.

Mr. Radicke stressed the importance of ensuring scoping occurs.

Mr. Mendez said MAG and PAG will identify projects available for programming and review
projects for reprogramming and cost changes from August 1 to November 1. He stated the
Technical Advisory Team will review the process from October 1 to November 15 and
recommend a draft statewide tentative program. He said the State Engineer’s Office will then
review the project section from November 1 to December 4.

In response to Chairperson Dusenberry’s question, Mr. Buskirk explained Mr. McGee provided
the TAC with a tentative revenue forecast, which will be used to develop the draft tentative
program. He said the forecast will be revised in January.

Mr. Buskirk stated MAG and PAG will work cooperatively in January 2003 to select projects for
the draft tentative program and Financial Management Services will update their financial
forecast. He noted the Priority Planning Advisory Committee is scheduled to review the Draft
Tentative Program on January 3. He stated the Board will review the Draft Tentative Program
during its February 6 study session, with the Priority Planning Advisory Committee expected to
recommend the Tentative Program later that same day. He said the Transportation Board will



accept the Tentative Program on February 21, to be followed by a series of public meetings,
wherein the Board will present the Tentative Program to the public. He stated final adjustments
will be made afier the public hearings and the Tentative Program will be presented to the Priority
Planning Advisory Committee who will recommend a final program. He said the Transportation
Board will adopt the final program at their June 20 meeting.

Chairperson Dusenberry asked if they are doing the RAC process. Mir. Buskirk responded yes,
explaining RAC has already met and made their allocation decisions. Ms. Dusenberry suggested
Mr. Buskirk indicate the RAC process has been accomplished in his next presentation.

Interim Programming Process

Mir. Buskirk explained the state will be using an Interim Programming Process until the Long
Range Transportation Plan for the state has been finalized and adopted by the Board. He
reviewed the mission of the Priority Programming Process, stating it reflects the department’s
goals and objectives, translates resource allocation decisions into project selection, is
accountable to Arizona’s stakeholders, uses performance based planning and programming
processes, cooperatively involves all stakeholders, is an open process and selects the most cost-
effective projects. He stated they will evaluate and prioritize deferred and new projects for the
2004-2008 Five Year Construction Program based on the criteria.

Chairperson Dusenberry recommended they send a list of deferred projects that have been
scoped to the District Engineers.

Mr. Radicke asked to what degree a project has to be scoped. Chairperson Dusenberry pointed
out the Board’s policy requires the project be fully scoped.

Mr. Buskirk reviewed the performance criteria, stating some are very quantitative, while others
are more substantive. He provided a sample of the proposed evaluation form, pointing out it
looks not only at existing conditions, but future conditions as well., He reviewed a hypothetical
data tabulation sheet, explaining the performance criteria are grouped into three broad categories;
mobility, safety, and planning goals and objectives. He explained the criteria are not all of equal
importance and are weighted to reflect their priority.

Chairperson Dusenberry asked who makes the decision as to how the criteria should be
weighted. Mr. Buskirk said they will make a proposal that reflects ADOT and stakeholder input
to the Board who will then make the final decision. He explained their intent is to make a
decision on weighting performance criteria at a conceptual level rather than a project specific
level.

Mr. Buskirk clarified for Mr. Radicke that the Priority Programming Committee will be
responsible for completing the evaluation forms.

In response to Chairperson Dusenberry’s question, Mr. Buskirk said their intent is to achieve
consensus on the weights used to evaluate all potential projects. He stressed the importance of
consistently applying the performance criteria across all projects.



Mr. Buskirk confirmed for Mr. Jeffers that areas who fail to report accident data will not be
counted in the data they use when making their evaluation. Chairperson Dusenberry suggested
the Board educate areas on the importance of accumulating accident data.

In response to questions from the Board, Mr. Buskirk explained the Resource Allocation
Committee has already allocated resources to the different regions and MAG, PAG and ADOT
will work cooperatively to identify and prioritize the projects, He said they will continue to
honor the processes MAG and PAG use to evaluate projects.

Mr. Radicke stated money will have to be available for scoping if they intend to require full
scoping before a project can be included in the program. Mr. Hileman expressed his opinion
there should be some flexibility in terms of the degree to which a project must be scoped. Mr.
Buskirk acknowledged special circumstances will preclude a project from being fully scoped,
stating, therefore, a provision has been included allowing a project to be programmed if it is
signed off on by the State Engineer. Ms. Brisk explained the department has three scoping
documents; a scoping letter, a project assessment and a design concept report.

Mr. Radicke said he has seen apprehension on the part of District Engineers to include sidewalks
and bicycle paths in their projects because it raises the cost of the project. Mr. Mendez said it is
up to the stakeholders to inform the department of the need for a sidewalk or bicycle path. Mr.
Radicke expressed his opinion it would cost less to include sidewalks and bicycle facilities as
part of the original project than it would to add them in at a later date. Mr. Jeffers suggested
areas would see the addition of sidewalks and other safety features as a means of obtaining a
higher score during the evaluation process. Mr. Buskirk pointed out, however, cost
considerations are also part of the project evaluation.

Chairperson Dusenberry asked who determines if a project has been scoped. Ms. Brisk said
multiple individuals sign off on the documents. Chairperson Dusenberry said she has been given
the impression that the DCR process takes longer than it should. Mr. Mendez explained a great
deal of analysis involving several stakeholders is required, stating they do not intentionally delay
finalizing any DCRs.

RABA - Additional Projects Added To The Program

Mr. Buskirk stated the RABA estimate totals $50 million and the Resource Allocation
Committee has allocated that amount in accordance with the traditional formula.

Mr. Radicke asked to see where the money was taken from initially before deciding where the

$50 million should be allocated. Mr. Mendez said he will work with M. Radicke to clarify his
questions before bringing the item back to the Board’s next study session.

HB 2660 Requirement

Mr. Buskirk presented an overview of HB 2660, which requires the Board to develop and adopt a
Statewide Transportation Policy Statement. He provided a draft version of the Statewide



Transportation Policy Statement, reviewing its contents. He explained that they will be taking
the statement to the public over the next six weeks and will revise the document based on
comments from people within the department and regional planning entities and those received
during the public meetings. He said they expect all reviews and revisions to be completed by
mid November and to present the revised statement to the Board for approval at the November or
December Board meeting.

Chairperson Dusenberry suggested the term multimodal be changed to multimodal/intermodal.
Mr. Buskirk agreed.

Mr. Buskirk pointed out the statement is consistent with MoveAZ, despite slight differences.

The meeting recessed for a short break.
SR 69 and SR 89 - Prescott

Tom Foster, District Engineer for Prescott, presented an overview of the planned improvements
near the SR 69 and SR 89 Interchange. A written copy of the phasing and funding information
was submitted for the record. He explained the DCR is currently set up for about $25 million,
with $14.1 million in the program. He stated they hope to finalize the DCR and EA by the end
of the year.

A member asked what benefit the Tribes see in participating in the improvements. Mr. Foster
explained they told the Tribes they would have to widen 69 to three lanes in each direction
before they would be allowed to build a development across from Frontier Village. He said the
Tribes also compete with Prescott in terms of commercial activity and the roads will make it
easier for residents in Prescott to access their commercial developments.

Mr. Wright pointed out that current funding allows them to do everything except the slip ramp
into Prescott.

Mr. Jeffers asked if the IGA includes the slip ramp and Sheldon/Gurley intersection
reconstruction projects, Mr. Foster responded no. Mr. Jeffers asked Mr. Foster if they are
confident that the prices quoted are accurate. Mr. Foster stated they are the best estimates they
can make with the information available at this time, acknowledging the prices could change
once design starts.

A member asked if there are plans to widen the road to the Dells. Mr. Foster responded no,
explaining it would require carving through the rock.

Chairperson Dusenberry asked how is the connector at the Airport and 89 working. Mr. Foster
stated it works fine now, but they will have to look at it again once the other two pieces are
completed.

Revised Aviation Policies



Gary Adams presented the revised Aviation Policies to the Board, a written copy of which was
submitted for the record. He explained no changes were recommended during last year’s review,
however, they have run into problems putting the five year program together. e identified the
Duncan/Secondary Airports and a letter from the Governor returning 100 percent of the Flight
Property Tax to the Aviation Fund as two key issues. He noted the Governor’s letter also
recommended the Board consider using the money being returned for economic development
projects and looking closely at the prioritization system. He said they established a committee
made up of various stakeholders who went through the Board’s policies and recommended
changes.

Mr. Adams explained the original priority rating system they used to numerically score all
projects did not allow secondary airports to compete with larger airports. He said, therefore, they
created a different priority rating system for small airports and established a set-aside of money.
He stated they later decided to drop the secondary set-aside but did not change the priority rating
system. He said they noticed last year that the priority numerical scoring system actually rates
secondary airports higher than the primary airports, therefore more dollars were being spent on
secondary airports.

In response to Chairperson Dusenberry’s question, Mr. Adams stated there are 20 commercial
service airports, approximately 40 primary airports and seven secondary airports. He noted there
are also about 300 private landing strips and heliports located throughout the state.

Mr. Adams said the Committee decided the priority rating system should be left alone, but that
the secondary set-aside should be reestablished. He explained doing so will give primary
airports more money. He said the Committee also added language to more clearly explain the
types of environmental projects that are eligible for assistance.

Mr. Adams said the Governor, in her letter to the Board, indicated there should be a greater
emphasis placed on economic development as it relates to airports as economic engines. He
stated the Loan Committee opposed using grant funds for economic development and felt
economic development projects should be done through the loan program. He explained they
have created a new category of loans, Economic Development Loans, that are available to
airports for projects that promote airport self-sufficiency, but are typically not considered direct
revenue producing projects.

In response to Chairperson Dusenberry’s question, Mr. Adams explained Mr. McGee uses the
Delphi-Hanover Index to determine the interest rates applied to the loans. He noted they
increased the repayment period to 25 years.

Mr. Adams reviewed other technical changes made to the policies, noting some of the language
was changed to make it more universal, particularly as it relates to aviation regulations.

Mr. Adams confirmed for the Board that secondary airports are not eligible for federal
assistance.



M. Radicke asked about the local match. Mr. Adams explained on federal/state/local projects,
the federal government puts up 91.06 percent, the state puts up 4.47 percent and the locals put up
4.47 percent. He said on state/local projects, the state puts up 90 percent for primary airports and
95 percent for secondary airports.

The meeting recessed for a short break.
Maricopa County ¥: Cent Sales Tax Extension Proposal

Mr. Mendez presented an overview of the Maricopa County 'z Cent Sales Tax Extension
proposal. He said the Legislature asked ADOT to recommend how it would use the 2 cent sales
tax if it were extended for 20 years under the original purpose, noting the original purpose
allocates 98 percent of the funds to highways and freeways and 2 percent to transit. He said they
also asked what ADOT would recommend if certain portions of the initiative were cut out and
redirected to other areas. He said they looked at two alternatives, one with 90 percent of the
funds going to highways and freeways and 10 percent going to transit and other modes and a
second with an 80/20 split. He stated the Regional Area Road Fund is the primary funding
source for all new freeways in the region, pointing out the tax will expire at the end of 2005. He
said they hope to have 147 miles of freeway in place by 2007. He said they looked at three main
objectives: 1) establishing a regional transportation system that moves people and goods in a safe
and efficient manner; 2) improving the quality of life for people in the region; and 3) relieving
congestion.

Mr. Mendez stated, based on their initial analysis, they need approximately $12 billion to address
five categories of need: 1) quality of life improvements, such as noise mitigation, landscaping,
ITS, freeway service patrol and maintenance; 2) improvements to existing corridors, including
closing the medians and implementing the HOV plan already in place, adding general purpose
Janes, replacing cable barriers with concrete barriers, and adding capacity on I-10, I-17, US 60
and Grand Avenue; 3) implementation of new highways and freeways, including finalizing the
South Mountain Freeway, putting Loop 303 back into the program, creating southeast and
southwest valley corridors, and extending the Price freeway south of the Santan and the Estrella
Freeway south of 1-10; 4) transit support features, such as HOV lanes and park and ride lots; and
5) improvements and enhancements to existing transit services, for instance increasing the
number of express buses coming from the east valley. With regard to noise mitigation, he said
they are suggesting the region commit to laying rubberized asphalt pavement throughout the
entire system.

In response to Chairperson Dusenberry’s question, Mr. Mendez stated rubberized asphalt costs
$400,000 per mile and has a 10 to 12 year life cycle. He stated, based on their research, they
believe rubberized asphalt lowers noise by approximately five decibels.

Mr. Radicke asked how many cars are removed from the freeway system by the transit system.
Mr. Wright offered to provide the numbers to Mr. Radicke.

Mr. Mendez stated extending the ¥ cent sales tax for 20 years would generate between $7.6 and
$10.5 billion, based on a two to five percent growth. He noted MAG’s estimate was about $9



billion and the City of Phoenix estimated close to $10 billion. He explained Alternative A is the
original 98/2 percent split, Alternative B is a 90/10 percent split and Alternative C is an 80/20

percent split.

Mr. Mendez noted MAG established a Transportation Policy Committee composed of 15 elected
officials and 10 business people. He said he will formally submit their response to the TPC

1OmoITow.
Chairperson Dusenberry asked if there is any talk about a statewide half-cent sales tax. Mr. __

responded vyes, stating the issue was discussed at their Transportation Policy Committee retreat
and they are sending a letter to rural groups to invite them to participate in a dialogue.

Adjournment
No closing comments were made.

Board Action: A motion to adjourn was made, seconded and passed unanimously.

The meeting adjourned at 1:20 p.m.

b Mnagulbon,

Katie Dusenberry, Chairpers¢f
State Transportation Board

2 M

Victor Mendez, Directoy/”
Arizona Department of Transportation







